
 
 

Agenda 
 
 
 

 

Agriculture Advisory Committee Meeting 
to be held via Zoom 

 

*Public attendance at committee meetings continues to be restricted due to limited space and the 
physical distancing requirements.  If you’d like to watch or listen to the live Committee meeting, 
please email Committees@Penticton.ca 24-hours prior to the commencement of the meeting for 
the Zoom meeting participation details. You will have an opportunity to ask questions related to 

the agenda at the end of the meeting. 
 
 

Wednesday, October 21, 2020 
at 3:00 p.m. 

 

1. Call Regular Committee Meeting to Order 
 
2. Adoption of Agenda 
 
3. Adoption of Minutes 

 

3.1 Minutes of the July 22, 2020 Agriculture Advisory Committee Meeting            2-4 

Staff Recommendation:    
THAT the Agriculture Advisory Committee adopt the minutes of the July 22, 2020 
meeting as presented. 

 
4. New Business 
 

4.1 Roundtable Introductions                        Verbal 
 

4.2 Committee Terms of Reference Update – Paula McKinnon, Legislative Assistant                       5-9 
 

4.3 Food Systems Strategy Working Group Update – Annelise Simonsen     Verbal 
 

4.4 October 6, 2020 Council Resolution                                                                                                         10-27 
  Re:  375 Smythe Drive – Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-41– Steven Collyer, Planner 1 

 Staff Recommendation:    
THAT the Agriculture Advisory Committee recommends that Council support “Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-41” to rezone the property from A (Agriculture) zone to 
RM1 (Bareland Strata Housing) zone with site-specific provisions to prohibit duplexes 
and townhouses, set a maximum density of 27 single detached dwellings, and 
increase the permitted building height from 8.5 m to 10.5 m. 

 
5. Next Meeting                                                 28 

  
6. Public Question Period 
 
7. Adjournment 

Page 1

mailto:Committees@Penticton.ca


 

Minutes 
 
 
 

Agriculture Advisory Committee Meeting  
To be held via Zoom 

Wednesday, July 22, 2020  
at 3:00 p.m. 

Present: Rod King, Chair  
  Doug Mathias, Vice Chair 
  Kristi Tatebe 
  Chris Holler 

Paul Gardner 
Jesse Chapman 
Darshan Jassar 
 

Council: Julius Bloomfield, Councillor 
 
Staff:  Micheal Firlotte, Water Quality Supervisor 

Audrey Tanguay, Manager of Planning 
Nicole Capewell, Planner 1 
Paula McKinnon, Legislative Assistant 

 
Regrets: Annelise Simonsen 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 

The Agriculture Advisory Committee was called to order by the Chair at 3:00 p.m. 
 
2. Adoption of Agenda 
 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agriculture Advisory Committee adopt the agenda for the meeting held on July 22, 
2020 as presented. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

3. Adoption of Minutes  
 
3.1 Minutes of the June 17, 2020 Agriculture Advisory Committee Meeting 

 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agriculture Advisory Committee adopt the minutes of the June 17, 2020 meeting as 
presented. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
4. Business Arising from Prior Meetings 

 

Page 2



Page 2 of 3 
Minutes of the July 22, 2020 Agriculture Advisory Committee Meeting 

 

5. New Business 
5.1 Irrigation, Sewer and Water Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-25 – Micheal Firlotte, Water 

Quality Supervisor 
 

The Water Quality Supervisor presented to the Committee the proposed “Irrigation, Sewer 
and Water Amendment Bylaw No. 2020, 25” and associated ticketing bylaws to advise how 
the newly revised watering restrictions will affect the agricultural community. 

 
Members at large asked various questions regarding clarification on the proposed watering 
restrictions and set stage levels. Members also provided the Water Quality Supervisor with 
feedback to help improve portions of the proposed bylaw for clarification purposes.  

 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agriculture Advisory Committee support “Irrigation, Sewer and Water Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2020-25” and related ticketing bylaws as follows: “Municipal Ticketing Information 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-29” and “Bylaw Notice Enforcement Amendment Bylaw No. 2030”. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

Darshan Jassar, Member at Large, entered the meeting at 3:24 p.m. 
 

5.2 Proposed Zoning Amendment to Agriculture Zone – Nicole Capewell, Planner 1 
 
The Planner 1 presented to the Committee the proposed zoning amendment to Agriculture 
Zone within the existing Zoning Bylaw. The Committee was informed that the new regulation 
would be referred to as ‘Farm Residential Footprint” which would introduce a 2,000m2 
maximum for farm residential footprint within the Agriculture Zone to maximize the farming 
potential on agricultural properties in the City. 

 
Feedback included staff reviewing and further clarifying the inclusion of paved driveways and 
farm help dwellings included in the proposed regulation and including a definition of arable 
land for application in the new regulation to encourage owners to build dwellings on non-
arable land. 
 
The Committee agreed by consensus that the proposed Zoning Amendment to Agriculture 
Zone be brought back to the Committee at the August 19 Committee meeting following a 
review of the feedback provided for further consideration. 

 
 
6. Council Outcome  
 
7. Next Meeting 

 
The next Agriculture Advisory Committee meeting is scheduled to be held on August 19, 2020 
at 3:00 p.m. 
 

8. Public Question Period 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



Page 3 of 3 
Minutes of the July 22, 2020 Agriculture Advisory Committee Meeting 

 

 
 

9. Adjournment 
  

It was MOVED and SECONDED  
THAT the Agriculture Advisory Committee adjourn the meeting held on July 22, 2020 at  
4:28 p.m. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
Certified Correct: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Paula McKinnon 
Legislative Assistant   

Page 4



 

 
2020 – 2022 Terms of Reference 

Agriculture Advisory Committee 

 

 

1. The Committee shall consist of TEN (10) voting members appointed by City Council for a term 
ending December 31, 2022.  Preference will be given for individuals with direct knowledge or 
interest and/or experience in agriculture that could include, but is not limited to: 

• Students and Youth 
• Agricultural finance 
• Academia 
• Horticulture 
• Viticulture 
• Livestock/animal husbandry 
• Agricultural processing 
• Value-added processor (cheese, cider, preserves, oil, etc.)  
• Distribution, including farm retail sales/markets 
• Sustainable development 
• Agri-tourism 

2. The Committee Members shall appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair. 

3. Council shall appoint one (1) Council representative to the Committee.  

4. Role of Council Representative:  

• Non-Voting Member 
• Liaison to City Council 

 
5. The Mayor or their Deputy will act as an alternate Council representative. 

6. A majority of appointed voting members shall constitute a quorum. 

7. The Planning Manager and/or designate shall attend committee meetings to provide 
operational support to the Committee.  

8. The Corporate Administration Department shall arrange for secretarial services to the 
Committee. 

9. The Committee shall meet quarterly, or as required when a new piece of business is referred to 
the Committee by council or staff requiring immediate action. 

10. The Committee’s mandate is to make recommendations to the Council on all matters referred 
to the Committee, including: 

• Making recommendations on all aspects of the agricultural industry, including land use, 
economic development and cultural matters; 

• Acts as a liaison between Council and the agricultural community; 

Page 5

mckinnp
Highlight



• Review and make recommendations on applications initiated under the Agricultural Land 
Commission Act, which are to be considered by Council; 

• Applications to amend the Official Community Plan and Zoning Bylaw where the subject 
property is zoned agricultural or has a direct impact on agriculturally zoned parcels; 

• As directed by Council, reviewing initiatives to enhance the agricultural economy and 
promote Agri-business and Agri-tourism opportunities; 

• As directed by Council, providing input on submissions to other levels of government; 
• As directed by Council or requested by staff, advising staff on issues related to the irrigation 

systems, draining, roads or other municipal services affecting agricultural lands; 
• As directed by Council, the Committee will undertake, research, develop or propose 

cultural tourism initiatives or potential partnerships in line with the City’s vision. These 
initiatives may include (but are not limited to): 
o Agricultural heritage exhibit 
o Farm tours and farm demonstrations 
o Horse riding including cattle drive activities 
o Horse or other livestock shows 
o Hay, tractor and sleigh rides 
o Pumpkin patch tours and related activities 
o Picnicking 
o Farm related educational activities including cooking classes using farm products from 

the farm 
o Seasonal promotional events (e.g. harvest and Christmas fairs and activities) 
o Special promotional events (e.g. private or public special occasion events for the 

promotion of farm products) 
o Charitable fundraisers 
o Catered food and beverage service special events where farm products from the farm 

are promoted, but not a service requiring the use of a permanent commercial kitchen  
o Corn mazes 
o Bird and wildlife refuges and rescue services 

• The Committee, for any initiative it puts forward, will research, develop and propose 
funding source options for consideration, including, but not limited to, corporate 
sponsorship, community partnerships, grants, awards, senior levels of government, and/or 
municipal funding; 

• As directed by Council, the Committee undertakes to review and make recommendations 
on applications proposing community urban agriculture projects in passive areas of the 
City, including brownfields, pocket gardens, parks, green spaces, etc.; 

• Advise Council with respect to impacts of climate change and/or invasive species; 
• Working with Council, at Council’s request, on submissions related to agricultural issues 

with other levels of government; and 
• As directed by Council, recommend actions, education and marketing initiatives which 

promote increased public awareness and participation in residential and communal 
agriculture in the community. 

The Committee will not participate in operational matters respecting the City of Penticton. 

11.  Conflict of Interest 

All Committee members are expected to review and sign a Conflict of Interest Declaration and 
adhere to the requirements set out in the declaration. 

Page 6

mckinnp
Highlight



 

If a Committee member attending a meeting considers that he or she is not entitled to 
participate in the discussion of a matter or to vote on a question in respect of a matter because 
the member has a direct or indirect pecuniary interest in the matter, or for any other reason, the 
member must declare this and state the general nature of why he or she considers this to be the 
case and immediately leave the meeting or the part of the meeting during which the matter is 
under consideration. 

The member’s declaration must be recorded in the minutes, and the Committee member must 
not attempt in any way, whether before, during or after the meeting to influence the voting on 
any question in respect to the matter. 

12. Removal of a Member from Committee  

Council may remove a Committee member from a Committee for good and sufficient reason, 
which may include any of the following, without limitation: 

(a) the absence of a Committee member from three (3) consecutive regularly scheduled 
Committee meetings, unless the absence is because of illness or is with leave of the Committee; 

(b) a finding by Council that the Committee member has engaged in misconduct, such as 
bullying or harassment of another Committee member or a City employee; or 

(c) participation by a Committee member in circumstances where the Committee member has 
a conflict of interest. 
 
In any case where Council proposes to remove a member from a Committee, the member will 
be provided with notice and an opportunity to be heard by Council prior to Council voting on 
the matter. 
 

13. Resignation 

Any member may resign upon sending written notice to the Corporate Officer.  

In the event of a vacancy occurring during a regular term, the vacancy may be filled for the 
remainder of that term in the same way the initial appointments were made. 

14.  Closed Meeting 

All Committee members are expected to review and sign a Confidentiality Declaration and 
adhere to the requirements set out in the declaration. 

No meeting or part thereof shall be closed to the public except in accordance with Section 90 
of the Community Charter.  Should a Closed meeting be held by the Committee, members must 
keep in confidence, any information considered in any part of said meeting until such time as 
the information is released to the public as lawfully authorized or required.  Should the 
municipality suffer loss or damage due to contravention of confidentiality, the municipality may 
recover damages from the person(s) for the loss or damage. 

15. The Mayor will sign all correspondence initiated by the Committee on behalf of the City of 
Penticton. 

16. For certainty, the rules and procedures of Council Procedure Bylaw No. 2018-35 and all 
amendments thereto shall be observed as far as may be applicable. 

Page 7

mckinnp
Highlight

mckinnp
Highlight



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca   

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

Throughout your Committee term you are required to ensure that you do not participate in 
matters when you have a conflict of interest. 
 
A conflict of interest includes a pecuniary interest or another interest in a matter that 
constitutes a conflict, such as personal interest in a matter that is a distinct from the interest 
other citizens would have in the matter generally. 
 
A pecuniary interest refers to an interest a matter which may have financial consequences for 
you, such that you might be seen to have a recognizable incentive to vote for financial reasons. 
The phrase “pecuniary interest” is interpreted broadly. The interest does not mean there is a 
direct financial benefit or loss to you. It is sufficient if a matter has the potential to impact your 
pecuniary interests, whether directly or through another person or corporation, such as a close 
family member or your employer. 
 
Accordingly, you hereby acknowledge the following: 
 
1. It is your responsibility, as an individual committee member, to be aware of a potential 

conflict of interest and to declare the conflict when it arises. 

2. If you are unsure of whether you may have a conflict, it is your responsibility to obtain 
further advice or information in respect of the matter. 

3.  Once you have declared a conflict in relation to a matter coming before the committee, 
you must not: 

a. Participate in any discussion of the matter; 

b. Vote; or 

c. Attempt in any way, whether before, during or after the committee meeting, to 
influence the decision of others. 

4. If you participate when you have a conflict, the consequence is removal from the 
committee by Council. 

 
Please confirm your acknowledgement and agreement with the foregoing by signing and 
returning this declaration to the City. 
 
 
________________________________________  ____________________________________  
Signature       Date 
 
Print Name: ________________________________________ 

Page 8

mckinnp
Highlight



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca   

 

CONFIDENTIALITY DECLARATION 
 

Throughout your Committee term you will be exposed to and have access to confidential 
“information” which is the property of The Corporation of The City of Penticton (the “City”).  
Committee members with access to this information must not use it for personal benefit or in 
any way that could be detrimental to the City.  The term Information will not, however, 
include information which is or becomes publicly available other than as a result of a 
disclosure by you. 
 
Accordingly, you hereby agree that: 
 
1. You will keep Information confidential and will not (except as required by applicable law, 

regulation or legal process), without the City’s prior written consent, disclose any 
Information in any manner whatsoever; 

2. You will not (except as required by applicable law, regulation or legal process), without 
the City’s prior written consent, disclose to any person the fact that the Information exists; 

3. You will safeguard all Information to which you have access against inappropriate and 
unauthorized access by others; 

4. You agree to report incidents of misuse or abuse of information; 

5. The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act gives individuals a right of 
access to records subject to certain conditions.  The City has procedures in place for 
handling requests for information under this Act.  Any questions regarding privacy or the 
release of information not covered by these procedures should be referred to the 
Corporate Officer; 

6. This declaration will be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
Province of British Columbia and the British Columbia Courts will have exclusive 
jurisdiction to hear all matters arising here-from. 

 
Please confirm your declaration with the foregoing by signing and returning to the City 
herewith. 
 
 
 
________________________________________  ______________________________  
Signature      Date 
 
 
Print Name: _____________________________ 

Page 9

mckinnp
Highlight



From: Caitlyn Anderson
To: Paula McKinnon
Cc: Steven Collyer
Subject: October 6 Resolution
Date: Wednesday, October 7, 2020 3:24:00 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Hello,
 
Please be advised that Council at their Regular Council meeting held on Tuesday, October 6, 2020, passed the following resolution:
 

10.4       Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-41
                Re: 375 Smythe Drive

 
311/2020            It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-41”, for Lot 2 District Lot 196
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan KAP90446, located at 375 Smythe Drive, a bylaw to rezone the subject
property from A (Agriculture) zone to RM1 (Bareland Strata Housing) zone with the following site-specific
provisions:
·         In lieu of Section 10.7.1.4, duplexes are not permitted.

·         In lieu of Section 10.7.1.7, townhouses are not permitted.

·         In lieu of Section 10.7.2.3, the maximum density shall be 27 single detached dwellings.

·         In lieu of Section 10.7.2.6, the maximum building height for principal buildings shall be 10.5m.
AND THAT prior to the adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-41”, the developer is required to pay
an amount equal to 15% of the upgrade costs based on the final intersection design of Smythe Drive and
Lakeside Road determined through the Transportation Masterplan;
AND THAT Council direct staff to refer the application to the October 21, 2020 meeting of the Agricultural
Advisory Committee for feedback on “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-41” prior to the Public Hearing;
AND THAT Council forward “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-41” to the November 3, 2020 Public Hearing.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
 

 
I ask that you kindly follow through with the above resolution.
 
Thank you,
 
Caitlyn Anderson, BBA, Deputy Corporate Officer 
City of Penticton  |  171 Main Street  |  Penticton, BC  |  V2A 5A9
p: 250.490.2405  |  f: 250.490.2402 |  e: caitlyn.anderson@penticton.ca

This e-mail (including any attachments) is for the intended recipient only and may contain information that is priviledged and
confidential. If the reader of this e-mail is not the intended recipient you are hereby notified that any dissemination, disclosure,
distribution or copying of this e-mail or attachments is strictly prohibited and unlawful. If you received this communication in error,
please notify the sender immediately and delete this e-mail without making a copy. Thank you.

 
 

Page 10

mailto:/O=CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PENTICTON/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=AD8C2D4215444C19B601
mailto:Paula.McKinnon@penticton.ca
mailto:Steven.Collyer@penticton.ca
mailto:caitlyn.anderson@penticton.ca






 

   

 
 
 
 

Page 11



Figure 1 - Location Map

Page 12



Page 13



 
 

 

Page 14



Figure 2 - Detached Residential designation with site-specific policy for 375 Smythe Drive

Page 15



 

 

BL 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



 

 
 

 

 

 

2020 Agriculture Advisory Committee Meeting Dates 

Meeting commences at 3:00 p.m. 

Council Chamber, City Hall, 171 Main Street (Second Level) 

Month Date 

January - 

February 19 

March 18 

April 22 

May 20 

June 17 

July 22 

August 19 

September 16 

October 21 

November 18 

December 9 

Page 28


	2020-07-22  Agriculture Committee Minutes - Draft.pdf
	Agriculture Advisory Committee Meeting




